
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2021 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. Coronavirus Relief Fund Update (City Manager)

4. NEW BUSINESS
b. FY 19-20 Audit Update (Dixon, Hughes, Goodman, LLC)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Rev. Phyllis Vail, St. Paul Methodist Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of December 6, 2021

V. PRESENTATIONS 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING
B. SU-13-21 Elondia Grant (Place of Entertainment w/out ABC) – Subject property is located on the north side

of E. Mulberry Street between Center Street and John Street (Planning) 
C. SU-14-21 Heather Giddens – (Bingo Game Establishments) South side of W. US 70 HWY. between Claridge

Nursery Road and Hargrove Streets-Little River Shopping Center (Planning) 
D. SU-15-21 B.R. Stone (Accessory Dwelling) – Southwest corner of Sunset and Michelle Dawn Drives

(Planning) 
E. Z-12-21 Sheila B. Cannon – (R9-R6) – North side of Humphrey St. between Fourth and Aycock St. (Planning)
F. Z-13-21 Jason Seeley (GBCD-GBCD) – East side of S. Berkeley Blvd., northeast of the intersection of E. Elm

and S. Berkeley Blvd./Wright Brothers Ave (Planning) 
Planning Commission Excused

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
G. Neighborhood Plan Property Transfer (Downtown)
H. Boards and Commissions Meetings for 2022 (City Clerk)
I. Advisory Board and Commission Appointments (City Clerk)
J. Amending Chapter 32 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Goldsboro (City Clerk)
K. Departmental Monthly Reports

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
L. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Marty Anderson as an Employee of the City of

Goldsboro for More Than 13 Years 

XII. CLOSED SESSION

XIII. ADJOURN



Vine Street Storm Water Repairs – Request for Approval 

20 Dec 2021 

Talking Points 

• Stormwater infrastructure along Vine Street between George St and Virginia St has failed
o Needs to be replaced vs. repaired
o Old pipe will be abandoned in place and filled with flowable fill

• Installation of new pipe will be parallel to Vine St – within the grass median
o Upgrading from 12” to 18” pipe

• Installation will be accomplished in-house—cost estimate is $35K to $45K
o Estimate to contract out ~ $85K - $100K

• Plan to Utilize Stormwater Capital Project Funds – funds are available
o Finance will present an agenda item at the January 10, 2022 work session to officially

appropriate the funds
o In the interim, we need council approval/consent to proceed with the project in order

to expense funds and order materials for a projected mid-January start date

ws Item c 
added at meeting



Item No. Description Units
Estimated 
Quantity

Unit Cost Total Cost

1
Proposed 18" Double Wall Watertight Gasketed HDPE

Linear Feet 456 $60.00 $27,360.00

2 Tie to Ex. Catch Basin Each 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
3 Proposed Doghouse Storm Manhole Each 1 $5,243.18 $5,243.18
5 Asphalt Driveway Repair Square Yards 20 $75.00 $1,500.00
6 Concrete Driveway Repair Square Yards 20 $100.00 $2,000.00
7 Proposed 24" Curb and Gutter Linear Feet 40 $25.00 $1,000.00
9 Select Backfill Cubic Yards 400 $27.45 $10,980.00

10 Stone Bedding Tons 25 $51.82 $1,295.50
11 Flowable Fill Cubic Yards 15 $315.65 $4,734.75
12 Asphalt (S9.5B) Surface Course (2" Thick) Tons 5 $237.88 $1,189.40
13 Replace Ex. Water Service Each 1 $1,566.86 $1,566.86
14 Replace Ex. Sewer Service Each 1 $3,591.61 $3,591.61
15 Remove Trees >6" Each 2 $1,000.00 $2,000.00
16 Inlet Protection Each 6 $332.82 $1,996.92
17 Seeding and Mulching Acres 0.2 $5,788.13 $1,157.63
18 Traffic Control Lump Sum 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
19 Mobilization Lump Sum 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

$83,115.85

Replacing 12" Clay Pipe w/ 18" HDPE

Total Cost

Vine Street



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
DECEMBER 6, 2021 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on December 6, 2021. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  

Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilmember Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway  
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Charles Gaylor, IV 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

Absent: Councilmember Gene Aycock 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember 
Jones and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.  

Old Business. 
Engineering Project Update. Marty Anderson, City Engineer shared the following presentation with 

Council.  Mr. Anderson shared this is an update from the July 2021 presentation.   

Item A



2 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Mr. Anderson shared that state law has changed regarding utility relocation. The city is still responsible for 50% 
of the William Street widening project.  Any future projects with NCDOT that require utility relocations, the city 
will have to pay 25% and NCDOT will pay 75%. Council discussed ARP guidance regarding projects.      

 
New Business. 

LIHWAP Agreement Presentation.  Nina Williams, Income Maintenance Program Administrator for 
Economic Services Program with the Wayne County Department of Social Services shared the following 
presentation:  

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 



3 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Williams shared the program was implemented effective December 1, 2021. Council discussed the 
program with Ms. Williams.  

 
Utility Rate Study. Dave Hyder with Stantec shared the following presentation:  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



4 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Council discussed the presentation and shared concerns regarding rate increases. Mr. Hyder stated that 

you are at a point where you have to do something going forward. He stated that prioritizing the CIP is probably 
a number one priority to determine what’s most important.  

 
Mayor Ham stated that we have a difficult decision to make and to consider the various rate increases. He 

stated Council should give this some serious thought and come back after the first of the year and attack this 
situation. 

 
HOME-ARP Presentation.  Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director presented the following:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
Mayor Ham requested that Ms. Williams discuss the plans about proceeding. Ms. Williams stated that 

council discussed creating a homeless committee a few months ago. She stated that now we have the guidance 
from HUD, we have to align what we hoped to do with federal regulations. Ms. Williams explained the purpose 
of hiring a consultant. Council discussed the allocation plan. Councilmember Gaylor made a motion to approve 
the use of the 5% of HOME-ARP administrative funds received by HUD to hire a consultant to assist with the 
planning process. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously approved.  

 
Boards and Commissions Vacancies Discussion. Laura Getz, City Clerk presented the following:  

Commission on Community Relations and Development -- 6 Vacancies      
         Recommendation  
Ahmad Pittman  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Tracy Lewis   Not Eligible for Reappointment   ---  
Myelle Thompson  Not Eligible for Reappointment   ---  
Terri Bradley   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Elvira Johnson  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Marcus Lewis   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
*Board recommends for appointment: Denise Severino-Todd; Willie Smith; Lauri Kaufman 
*8 applications received to date 
 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course -- 6 Vacancies         
         Recommendation  
Richard Farfour  Not Eligible for Reappointment   ---  
Chip Spiron   Eligible for Reappointment    ---  
Kenny Loftin              Eligible for Reappointment   Board recommends replacement due to inactivity 
Gina Price   Resigned October 22, 2021    ---  
Rose Wright   Resigned October 22, 2021    ---  
Joe Thomas   Resigned      ---  
*1 application received to date 



6 
 
 
 
 

Historic District Commission -- 2 Vacancies          
         Recommendation  
Linda Liegel   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Donna Stevenson  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
*3 applications received to date 
 
Goldsboro Recreation & Parks Commission --4 Vacancies        
         Recommendation  
Mareese Mitchell  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Glenda Creech  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Linda Farmer   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Maria Newsome  Not Eligible for Reappointment   Student can only serve 1 year  
*4 applications received to date 
 
Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities -- 8 Vacancies       
         Recommendation  
David Snodgress  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Kenneth Coley  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Don Willis   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Donald Rhue   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Pier Protz   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Janet Baber   Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Tammy Mathis  Eligible for Reappointment    Board recommends reappointment  
Doug Seymour  Resigned September 16, 2021   ---  
*Board recommends for appointment: Johnny Holland 
*2 applications received to date 
 
Goldsboro Planning Commission -- 2 Vacancies          
         Recommendation  
Mia Barnett   Resigning as of December 31, 2021   ---  
Chris Boyette  Not Eligible for Reappointment   ---  
*6 application received to date 
 
Travel and Tourism Advisory Council -- 3 Vacancies         
         Recommendation  
Bharat Prajapati (Hotelier)  Not Eligible for Reappointment  ---  
Diane Belmont (At-Large)  Resigned     ---  
Tyrone Barrett (Hotelier)  Resigned     ---  
*Board recommends for appointment: Viola Figueroa; KerriAnn Jayne (Hotelier); Judith Gray (Hotelier) 
*8 applications received to date 

 
Council discussed the vacancies and recommended the following citizens for appointment.   
Commission on Community Relations and Development 
Denise Severino-Todd   
Melissa Potts    
Second Term Appointees 
Ahmad Pittman    
Terri Bradley    
Elvira Johnson    
Marcus Lewis    
 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course  
Christopher Morrissey   
Second Term Appointee  
Chip Spiron    
 
Council discussed the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee. Mr. Salmon stated there is a general 
satisfaction with the Golf Course and suggested adding members of the committee to the Recreation Advisory 
Committee.  Mr. Salmon asked for a motion to stand down the Golf Course Committee, there was no motion 
made. Council discussed the Golf Course Committee and reducing the number of members.  The clerk will 
present an ordinance at the next meeting reducing the number of members of the Golf Course Committee for 
approval. 
 
 



7 
 
 
 
 

 
Historic District Commission  
Second Term Appointees 
Linda Liegel    
Donna Stevenson    
 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission  
Second Term Appointees 
Maurice Mitchell   
Glenda Creech     
Linda Farmer     
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack requested the student member position remain on the board.  
 
Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Johnny Holland 
Shelby Ostendorf    
Second Term Appointees 
David Snodgress    
Kenneth Coley    
Don Willis     
Donald Rhue    
Pier Protz     
Janet Baber    
Tammy Mathis    
  
Council discussed increasing the number of members on the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities. 
The clerk will present an ordinance at the next meeting increasing the number of members on the Mayor’s 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities for approval. Mayor Ham stated they will defer the appointment of the 
members pending an ordinance change.  
     
Goldsboro Planning Commission   
Viola Figueroa    
William N. Rose Jr.    
 
Councilmember Broadaway discussed the reappointment of Chris Boyette and stated he should be grandfathered 
into his term; there was no action taken by Council.  
 
Travel and Tourism Advisory Council  
LaToya Stallings     
Judith Gray    
KerriAnn Jayne 
 
The clerk will bring a resolution to the next meeting appointing members as discussed.     
 

Coronavirus Relief Fund Update. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director presented the following: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Mayor and Council, Ms. Gwynn and Mr. Salmon discussed the CRF Update. Mayor Pro Tem Polack 

requested using some of the funds to pay solid waste employees as part of the mitigation process and that they 
are overlooked. Ms. Gwynn shared that council could do a bonus as hazard pay to solid waste employees with 
certain conditions. Mayor Ham asked how Ms. Gwynn purposes to use the funds of $6,896. She shared the 
manager purposed using it toward public safety pay. Mr. Salmon shared his determination regarding doing 
hazard pay. Council discussed the use of the funds and decided to come back at a later time to discuss hazard pay 



9 
 
 
 
 

bonuses. Councilmember Gaylor made a motion that we go ahead and allocate the remaining funds to public 
safety payroll at this time, the motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.   

 
There being no further business, the meeting recessed until 7:00 p.m.  

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on December 6, 2021. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Rod White provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.  
 
 Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 
   Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 

Councilmember Hiawatha Jones  
Councilmember Bill Broadaway  

   Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
   Councilmember Charles Gaylor, IV 
    

Absent: Councilmember Gene Aycock  
  
 Approval of Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work 
Session and Regular Meeting of November 15, 2021. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Jones and 
unanimously carried.  
 

Presentations. 
Redistricting Presentation. Caroline Mackie, Marshall Hurley and Bill Gilkeson with Poyner Spruill, 

LLC presented the following: 
 

      

      

      
 



10 
 
 
 
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      

      

      
Mayor Ham asked when the next meeting would be held. It was determined that Poyner Spruill will return to 
discuss redistricting criteria at the Council Retreat in February.  
 
Habitat for Humanity Presentation. Matthew Whittle, Executive Director of Habitat for Humanity presented 
the following information: 
 



11 
 
 
 
 

      

      

      

      

 
 

Continental Society Proclamation Presentation. Read by Councilmember Jones, David Ham, Mayor 
of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed December 11, 2021 as GOLDSBORO CHAPTER OF 
THE CONTINENTAL SOCIETIES, INC. DAY in Goldsboro, North Carolina, and commended this observance 
to our citizens. 
 
Comatha Johnson, Second Vice President and Councilmember Jones shared comments regarding the Continental 
Societies. 
 

Public Comment Period.  Mayor Ham opened the public comment period.  The following people spoke: 
 
1. Willie Baptiste shared issues concerning traffic lights in the city and a neighboring home (1402 

Lemon Street) that is in disrepair.  
2. Anniela Carracedo, International Student shared comments regarding Rotary and the Interact Club.  
3. Thomas Rice, MLFL shared comments regarding the progress with the homeless village.  
 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.   
 
Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. Mayor Ham presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 

were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and 
considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one 
motion and roll call vote.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E – K be 



12 
 
 
 
 

approved as recommended by staff. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Gaylor and a roll call vote 
resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    
 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 

 
 Resolution authorizing an installment financing contract for rolling stock and computer equipment 
and technology for FY22 with Sterling National Bank pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160A-20.  Resolution 
Adopted. On September 9, 2019, Council adopted a resolution designating the City Manager or the Finance 
Director as authorized to declare the City’s official intent to reimburse expenditures.  On July 1, 2021, the 
Finance Director issued the declaration of intent for the FY21-22 rolling stock and computer equipment and 
technology in the amount of $1,865,065.   
  
Staff worked in conjunction with our financial advisors, Davenport, to issue an RFP to secure a commitment for 
a direct bank loan. The City received 10 responses, and each proposal was evaluated on interest rate, prepayment 
provisions, and bank closing fees.  You will find attached an analysis of the top three rated financial institutions.   
 
Staff recommends that City Council pass the proposed resolution to enter into an installment financing contract 
with the Lender, Sterling National Bank, for a fifty-seven (57) month installment contract for an amount not to 
exceed $1,900,000.00 at interest rate of 0.94%. If approved, the City intends on closing the financing on or 
before December 22, 2021. 
 
The approved capital to be included in the loan is detailed in the list below. 

 
It was recommended that council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing an installment financing 
contract for rolling stock and computer equipment and technology for FY22 with the Lender in an amount not to 
exceed $1,900,00.00, and authorize the Mayor and City staff to execute the financial instruments necessary to 
close the loan. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (6 Ayes)  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-80 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
PERSONAL PROPERTY INSTALLMENT FINANCING AGREEMENT TO FINANCE CERTAIN VEHICLES 
AND PERSONAL PROPERTY” 
 
 SU-10-21 – Jose G. Morquecho – East side of South Berkeley Boulevard between Ash Street and 
Elm Street.  Order Adopted. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for the operation of a tattoo 
parlor. 
    Frontage: 168.89 ft. 
    Depth:  272.56 ft. 
    Area:  45,085 sq. ft. or 1.04 acres 
    Zoning:  General Business 
 
The site is located within a strip commercial center which contains nine individual units. The unit that will be 
occupied by the applicant contains 1,500 sq. ft. (25 ft. by 60 ft.) and addressed as 112-I S. Berkeley Boulevard. 
 
The applicant operates an existing tattoo parlor at 112-Q S. Berkeley Boulevard.  He provides tattoo services by 
appointment only and caters to professionals, including servicemen from the SJAFB.  He desires to relocate his 
business within a new tenant space which has greater visibility for attracting new customers. 



13 
 
 
 
 

 
The site is accessed by one 20 ft. wide, two-way curb cut from S. Berkeley Boulevard.   
 
The applicant has submitted a floor plan for the tattoo parlor identifying a total of 5 workstations, a breakroom 
and lobby area and restrooms for customers and employees of the facility.     
 
There are a total of 45 parking spaces (including two handicapped spaces) on the site. Based on the existing uses 
within the commercial strip center, a sufficient amount of parking spaces are available to serve the entire 
commercial development.  
 
 Days/Hours of Operation:   M-F:  Noon-6 p. m. 
 No. of Employees:    5 
 
Since the building on the lot is existing and only one unit is to be leased for the proposed tattoo parlor, the 
applicant will not be required to retrofit the site to meet current requirements as they relate to landscaping.   
On November 15, 2021, a public hearing was held before the Goldsboro City Council and the Planning 
Commission.  In accordance with Section 2.4.10, Goldsboro City Council shall issue the special use permit 
unless it concludes based on the information submitted at the hearing that: 
 

1. The permit request is not within its review authority according to 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; 
2. The application is incomplete; 
3. The development will not comply with one or more requirements of the Unified Development Code; 
4. The development will materially endanger the public health or welfare; 
5. The development will substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property;  
6. The development will not be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in which it 

is located; or 
7. The development will not be in general conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Thoroughfare Plan or 

other plan officially adopted by Council. 
 
At the public hearing, no one spoke in favor or against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission at their meeting held on November 29, 2021, recommended approval of a Special Use 
Permit #SU-10-21 to allow a tattoo parlor to operate at 112-I S. Berkley Boulevard, Goldsboro, North Carolina 
and located in the General Business (GB) zoning district. 
  
It was recommended that council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and approve the 
request for Special Use Permit #SU-10-21 and adopt an Order approving the Special Use Permit #SU-10-21 to 
allow a tattoo parlor to operate at 112-I S. Berkeley Boulevard, Goldsboro, North Carolina and located in the 
General Business (GB) zoning district. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
 SU-11-21 – Sandra H. Bell (Accessory Dwelling) – Northwest of the terminus of Overbrook Road 
and Pine Ridge Lane. Order Adopted. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for the construction of 
an accessory dwelling located at 127 Overbrook Rd.   
 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code, accessory dwellings are permitted in all single-family 
zoning districts or developed lots with the exception of the Agriculture (AG) zoning district only after the 
obtainment of a Special Use Permit approved by City Council. 
 
Approval criteria for accessory dwellings are as follows: 

1. Accessory dwellings/apartments must comply with all applicable local, state and federal housing codes. 
Only one accessory dwelling or apartment may be permitted per lot.  

2. The accessory dwelling or accessory apartment shall not exceed forty percent (40%) of the square footage 
of the livable area of the principle structure or one thousand one hundred square feet of gross floor area, 
whichever is less.  



14 
 
 
 
 

3.  An accessory dwelling shall be sited to the rear of the principle structure. All accessory dwellings shall 
meet the setback requirements established for the principle structures of the district in which they are 
located.  

4.  The exterior of the accessory dwelling shall be compatible with the principle residence in terms of color, 
siding, roof pitch, window detailing, roofing materials and foundation or skirting appearance. 
Manufactured homes shall not be pulled up to or attached to the principle residence and be considered an 
accessory dwelling or accessory apartment.  

5. Where there is no public sanitary sewer service to the accessory dwelling, the County Health Department 
shall approve sanitary sewer services provided to such accessory dwelling before construction begins. 

 
According to the submitted application, the applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for the construction of a 
12 ft. wide by 20 ft. deep (240 sq. ft.) accessory dwelling to be located in the rear yard of the property.  
Currently, the property is occupied by a single-story 3,182 sq. ft. single-family dwelling. 
  
The applicant is proposing to initiate a complete remodel of her principle dwelling and desires to reside in a tiny 
home until the renovation is complete.  Afterwards, only members of her immediate family would be allowed to 
utilize the accessory dwelling. 
 
 Frontage:         61 ft.  
 Area:   41.189 sq. ft. or .95 acres 
 Zone:   (R-16) Residential 
 
Staff has informed applicant of the fact that the proposed accessory dwelling must be constructed to meet the 
minimum requirements of the North Carolina Building Code, as well as, the supplemental regulations of the 
City’s Unified Development Code for accessory dwellings.   
 
If the applicant’s request for a special use permit is approved, building elevations, a site plan, floor plan and 
construction specifications shall be submitted and approved by City staff before building permits can be issued. 
 
On November 15, 2021, a public hearing was held before Goldsboro City Council and the Planning Commission.  
In accordance with Section 2.4.10, Goldsboro City Council shall issue the special use permit unless it concludes 
based on the information submitted at the hearing that: 
 

1. The permit request is not within its review authority according to 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; 
2. The application is incomplete; 
3. The development will not comply with one or more requirements of the Unified Development Code; 
4. The development will materially endanger the public health or welfare; 
5. The development will substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property;  
6. The development will not be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in which it 

is located; or 
7. The development will not be in general conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Thoroughfare Plan or 

other plan officially adopted by Council. 
 
At the public hearing, no one spoke in favor or against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission at their meeting held on November 29, 2021 recommended approval of a Special Use 
Permit #SU-11-21 for the construction of an accessory dwelling to be located at 127 Overbrook Rd., Goldsboro, 
North Carolina and within in the Residential (R16) zoning district. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and approve the 
request for Special Use Permit #SU-11-21 and adopt an Order approving the Special Use Permit #SU-11-21 for 
the construction of an accessory dwelling to be located at 127 Overbrook Rd., Goldsboro, North Carolina and 
within the Residential (R16) zoning district. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 



15 
 
 
 
 

 SU-12-21 Wayne Co. Project Shell – (Chemical Manufacturing Facility) Located at the corner of 
Challen Court and Gateway Drive and within Park East of the City of Goldsboro’s Industrial Business 
Park. Order Adopted. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for the operation of a chemical 
manufacturing facility in the Industrial Business Park (I&BP-1) zoning district. 
 
 Frontage: 775.49 ft. (Gateway Drive) 
     791.34 ft. (Challen Court) 
 Depth:   966 ft. (average) 
 Area:    18.94 acres 
 Zoning:   Industrial Business Park-1 
 
On August 6, 2018, Goldsboro City Council approved site, landscape and building elevation plans for the 
County of Wayne to construct a commercial shell building at the proposed site for industry recruitment purposes.  
Once a specific use was determined for the site, complete and detailed site plans would be required and approved 
by City officials before construction permits would be issued. 
 
On September 20, 2021, a public hearing was conducted to consider proposed minor text amendments to Article 
5 of the City’s Unified Development Code to reflect the addition of chemical products, manufacturing and 
processing; and, the storage or treatment of hazardous materials or chemical uses as a special use within the 
Industrial Business Park (I&BP-1) zoning district.  
 
Specifically speaking, minor changes for the proposed text amendment included: 

1. Amending Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses by allowing both Chemical products 
manufacturing/processing and Storage or treatment of hazardous materials or chemical uses as a special 
use in the Industrial and Business Park (I&BP-1) zoning district; 

2. Amending Section 5.5 Supplemental Use Regulations by adding to Subsections 5.5.4M and 5.5.4EE, 
Industrial and Business Park (I&BP) zoning district, as a permitted district for the use of Community 
Sensitive Heavy Industrial Uses (5.5.4M) and Storage or Treatment of Hazardous/Chemical Materials 
(5.5.4EE). 

 
On October 4, 2021, City Council accepted the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopted an 
ordinance amending the Unified Development Code to reflect the addition of chemical products, manufacturing 
and processing; and, the storage or treatment of hazardous materials or chemical uses as a special use within the 
Industrial Business Park (I&BP-1 zoning district and the associated minor text amendments.  
 
According to the City’s UDO, chemical manufacturing facilities are classified as Community Sensitive Heavy 
Industrial Uses.  As such, the following supplemental regulations are required for the proposed use: 
 

1.  The entire area of the site shall be enclosed by a six foot high opaque fence set back one hundred feet 
from any public right of way or residentially developed or zoned property and/or fifty feet from any other 
adjacent property.  

2.  The yard area between the fence and the property line, not used for parking, shall be planted with grass 
and have landscaping composed of large trees spaced not more than forty feet apart and not less than one 
row of shrubs thirty inches in height, spaced so that they will form a continuous visual screen six feet in 
height within three growing seasons.  

3.   No loading or unloading of materials shall occur outside of the fenced area.  
4.   A statement shall be submitted with the plans indicating whether any manufacturing or processing 

operation will create smoke, offensive odor, dust, noise, fumes or vibrations beyond the lot lines of the 
proposed use. If one or more of such conditions exist, the developer shall explain what measures will be 
taken to mitigate such conditions to acceptable levels.  

5.   The uses shall be located a minimum of one thousand feet from any residentially developed or zoned 
property.  

 
The one thousand foot separation distance shall be measured in a straight line from property line to property line, 
with no consideration as to intervening structures, roads or landforms. 



16 
 
 
 
 

The applicant has submitted site, landscape, storm water, grading and drainage plans for the proposed use, as 
well as, a floor plan for the existing 50,277 sq. ft. commercial shell building.  The building will consist of 
offices, a conference room, a lobby, break room, locker room, and restrooms for employees of the facility.   
 
Approximately 47,225 sq. ft. of space will be reserved for chemical manufacturing processes.  Additional 
acreage is available for future expansion purposes. 
 
Two existing access drives front Challen Court.  The southernmost access drive is paved and leads to a parking 
lot containing 18 parking spaces.  The northernmost access drive is graveled and leads to a four-bay loading 
dock.  Paved surfaces will be required for the northernmost access drive. 
 
Manufacturing operations require 1 space per 2 employees on the maximum shift, plus 1 space for each vehicle 
stored on site.  Currently, 12 employees will occupy the facility.   The existing 18 parking spaces will provide 
sufficient parking for the proposed use.  Additional acreage is available for future parking expansion purposes. 
 
Existing street trees have been provided along Challen Court.  Additional street trees will be required along 
Gateway Drive.   
 
A storm water detention pond is located east of the principle building.  Evergreen shrubs will be required to be 
installed around the pond for screening purposes. 
 
City Engineering will require approval of storm water calculations and drainage plans prior to the issuance of 
construction permits. 
 
Currently, the property is not located within Goldsboro’s corporate limits.  City water and sewer are available to 
serve the property. In accordance with the Goldsboro Code of Ordinances, Section 53.17, the proposed use is 
classified as industrial.  As such, a formal agreement shall be executed by the applicant for voluntary annexation 
on or before the expiration of seven years from the date a certificate of occupancy has been issued for the 
facility. 
 
The site is not located in SJAFB’s Accident Potential Zone or within the Noise Overlay Contour.   Base officials 
have commented that they do not foresee any concerns with the proposed use with regards to emergency hazards 
and do not anticipate it impacting the bases’ Hazard Assessments. 
 
A commercial dumpster coral has not been shown on the submitted site plan.  The coral will be required to be 
built to City standards and screened from public view. 
 
If Council approves the Special Use Permit and associated site plans, the property will be subject to compliance 
with the City’s subdivision review ordinance and the North Carolina State Building Code before construction 
permits can be issued. 
 
On November 15, 2021, a public hearing was held before Goldsboro City Council and the members of the 
Planning Commission.  In accordance with Section 2.4.10, Goldsboro City Council shall issue the special use 
permit unless it concludes based on the information submitted at the hearing that: 
 

1. The permit request is not within its review authority according to 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; 
2. The application is incomplete; 
3. The development will not comply with one or more requirements of the Unified Development Code; 
4. The development will materially endanger the public health or welfare; 
5. The development will substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property;  
6. The development will not be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in which it 

is located; or 
7. The development will not be in general conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Thoroughfare Plan or 

other plan officially adopted by Council. 
 



17 
 
 
 
 

At the public hearing, one individual inquired as to the nature and scope of the proposed use.  The applicant was 
present to answer questions pertaining to the matter. 
 
The Planning Commission at their meeting held on November 29, 2021, recommended approval of a Special Use 
Permit #SU-12-21 for the operation of a chemical manufacturing facility to be located at 400 Challen Ct., 
Goldsboro, North Carolina and within the Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) zoning district. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and approve the 
request for Special Use Permit #SU-12-21 and adopt an Order approving the Special Use Permit #SU-12-21 for 
the operation of a chemical manufacturing facility to be located at 400 Challen Ct., Goldsboro, North Carolina 
and within the Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) zoning district. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (6 
Ayes) 
 
 Rescheduling Council Meetings for 2022. Schedule Approved.  The Goldsboro City Council normally 
meets the 1st and 3rd Mondays of every month for their Regular Council Meeting.   
 
The following meetings need to be rescheduled due to holidays: 

- Monday, January 3, 2022 due to New Year’s 
- Monday, January 17, 2022 is in observance of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday 
- February 21, 2022 due to Council Retreat 
- Monday, July 4, 2022 due to Independence Day  
- Monday, September 5, 2022 is in observance of Labor Day 

 
Staff suggests Council consider rescheduling the above meetings to the following dates: 

- Monday, January 10, 2022 
- Monday, January 24, 2022  
- Council Retreat will be held February 21-22, 2022 or February 23-24, 2022 
- Combining the July meetings to Monday, July 11, 2022 
- Tuesday, September 6, 2022 

             
It was recommended that Council accept staff recommendations and approve the 2022 Regular Council Meeting 
schedule.  Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 

 
 Updates to the Municipal Records Retention and Disposition Schedule. Resolution Adopted.  The 
North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources, Division of Archives and History is responsible for assisting 
local governments in records management, including the destruction of obsolete records and the protection of 
essential records as provided by NC General Statues 121-5 and 132.  
 
The Department of Cultural Resources has issued an amendment to the Records Retention Schedule, effective 
October 1, 2021. 
 
The new update also requires a specific Agency Policy date for records to be discarded “when Administrative 
value ends,” and this period is deemed to be a period of no less than three (3) years.  
 
The municipal records management program provides advice, service, and training in the control, maintenance, 
preservation, and disposal of official public records in the custody of local governmental units.   
 
The term “Public Record” refers to any document, paper, letter, map, book, photograph, film, sound recording, 
magnetic or other tape, electronic data processing record, artifact, or other documentary material made or 
received pursuant to law or ordinance in connection with the transaction of public business by any agency of the 
North Carolina government or its subdivisions. 
    
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled Resolution adopting the 2021 General Records 
Schedule for Local Government Agencies and the 2021 Program Records Schedule for Local Government 



18 
 
 
 
 

Agencies as updated by the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Polack/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-81 “A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL RECORDS 
SCHEDULE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES AND THE PROGRAM RECORDS SCHEDULE FOR 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSTION SCHEDULES” 
 
 Code of Ordinances Update: Criminal Ordinance Amendments. Ordinance Adopted. On September 
2, 2021, Governor Cooper signed SB300 Criminal Justice Reform into law. Part XIII of S.L. 2021-138 provides 
that, effective December 1, 2021, violation of a city ordinance may be a misdemeanor or infraction as provided 
by G.S. 14-4 only if the city specifies such in the ordinance. An ordinance may provide by express statement that 
the maximum fine, term of imprisonment, or infraction penalty to be imposed for a violation is some amount of 
money or number of days less than the maximum imposed by G.S. 14‑4. 
 
Prior to December 1, 2021, NCGS 160A-175, held that unless the city provided otherwise, a violation of an 
ordinance was a misdemeanor or infraction as provided by G.S. 14-4. So, by default, if city did not take action 
otherwise, ordinances were enforced criminally. 
 
The Goldsboro City Council intends for certain ordinance violations to continue to be punishable as a 
misdemeanor and therefore have rewritten section 10.99: General Penalty to comply with the new law. 
 
Part XIII of S.L. 2021-138; NCGS §160A-175-Enforcement of Ordinances states that no ordinance of the 
following types may impose a criminal penalty: 
 

• Chapter 98:   Streets And Sidewalks 
• Chapter 110:  Licensing Provisions 
• Chapter 112:  Massage Therapists And Massage Therapy Establishments 
• Chapter 113:  Peddlers And Itinerant Merchants 
• Chapter 114:  Vehicles For Hire 
• Chapter 116:  Licensing For Boarding And Rooming Houses 
• Chapter 117:  Pushcart And Mobile Food Unit Vendors 
• Unified Development Ordinance 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance amending 10.99: General Penalty 
Ordinance, and Chapters 98, 113, 116, 117 of the City of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Polack/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-38 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 10.99: GENERAL PENALTY ORDINANCE AND 
CHAPTERS 98, 113, 116, and 117 OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO CODE OF ORDINANCES” 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
City Manager’s Report.  Tim Salmon thanked Council for approving the $250.00 holiday bonus for city 

employees and provided a Covid update.  He also mentioned the recent Boys and Girls Club pancake breakfast, 
and thanked participants and staff for supporting the Christmas parade.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendation.   
Councilmember Jones shared she was thankful everyone had a wonderful Thanksgiving. She shared 

comments about a program she is implementing called, Warm Thoughts, Warm Wishes, for the unhoused. The 
program collects throws and socks. She also shared comments regarding the Empty Stocking Fund.    

 
Councilmember Broadaway shared he was at Lights Up and is proud of our city.  He thanked the Public 

Works staff for their work putting up the lights. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack shared that during the holidays we pray for unity and growth in our city by 

including individuals from all backgrounds for the prosperity within our community. He thanked everyone for 



U

U

J

N

O

03O

0'

C

0

v

b

cC

o

Cd

0

Cd

O

x

C) 

3 . 

U

r

U

0

o

ami, 

O

o

yaoi 

ani

O

N

1- 

bA
cC

U 

OCd

64

O

0

O

U

O

OL' 
4-
1

Cd

C0

O

O > 

0

OCd

Cd ° 

A

O

O °°  >." :

z

N

O

O

c 

p

O

y • 

O

O

O

V1

o

rn °  

3

0° 

O ; 

p„ 

a

Cdo ° 

GO

00

N

O

w

o

O

0

0

cC

O

O $

d

O

O

r. 

0 - 

c .. 

0

0

v 

cd

P- 

o

0U) 

C"

3

U

o

b
L° 

yN
U ~>' `' '

C

O

0y
cn 

y

U

a' 

cl

O '

O $ 

CO

O

O

Oo
10  

C

0

T

n

m64
O

O >, 

oiD
a) 

U

o0 ° 

U

r.

a

40. 

y

s

ice-+ 

J 

V • 

j  

a

X4

U



B







C





D





E



F





G















H





I



RESOLUTION NO. 2021- j a - 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS

TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City
government; and

WHEREAS, the terms of several members on the City' s Advisory Boards and Commissions
have expired or been vacated due to members moving or resigning; and

WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizens have expressed a desire to serve upon the
indicated Board or Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the specified Boards and
Commissions. The terms of the appointees shall expire on the dates indicated: 

Commission on Community Relations and Development
First Term Appointees

Denise Severino- Todd Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Melissa Potts Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Second Term Appointees

Ahmad Pittman Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Terri Bradley Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Elvira Johnson Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Marcus Lewis Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course

First Term Appointee

Christopher Morrissey Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Second Term Appointee

Chip Spiron Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Historic District Commission

Second Term Appointees

Linda Liegel Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Donna Stevenson Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission

Second Term Appointees

Maurice Mitchell Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Glenda Creech Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Linda Farmer Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Mayor' s Committee for Persons with Disabilities

First Term Appointee

Johnny Holland Term Expires 12- 31- 2024



Second Term Appointees

David Snodgress

Kenneth Coley
Don Willis

Donald Rhue

Pier Protz

Janet Baber

Tammy Mathis

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Goldsboro Planning Commission
First Term Appointees

Viola Figueroa Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

William N. Rose Jr. Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Travel and Tourism Advisory Council
First Term Appointees

LaToya Stallings Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Judith Gray Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

KerriAnn Jayne Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
201h

day of
December, 2021. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City ClerkU

14a, idla, Mayor



RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 3

RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED ON VARIOUS ADVISORY

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND DIRECTING THE

MAYOR ON BEHALF OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO PRESENT THE INDIVIDUALS WITH A

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION

WHEREAS, citizen participation is vital to responsible government; and

WHEREAS, the following individuals have served the local citizenry by their service upon the
advisory Boards and Commissions of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to commend these civic -minded citizens for their
voluntary contributions to the City of Goldsboro. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

The following individuals are recognized for their service on the City' s advisory Boards and
Commissions and are commended for their contributions to the operation of Goldsboro' s

municipal government: 

Commission on Community Relations and Development

Tracy Lewis
Myelle Thompson

Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course

Kenny Loftin
Gina Price

Joe Thomas

Rose Wright

Richard Farfour

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission
Maria Newsome

Mayor' s Committee for Persons with Disabilities

Doug Seymour

Goldsboro Planning Commission
Mia Barnett

Chris Boyette

Travel and Tourism Advisory Council
Bharat Prajapati

Diane Belmont

Tyrone Barrett

2. Certificates of Appreciation signed by the Mayor, City Manager, and Chairperson will to be
presented at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the various Boards and Commissions or as
close to that meeting date as possible. 

3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
201h

day of December, 2021. 



Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

Ham-,IQayor



J



ORDINANCE NO. 2021 - ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 32 BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND DEPARTMENTS 
 OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro recognizes an values the importance of citizen participation in local 
government; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro utilizes volunteer boards and commissions as a mechanism to engage 
citizens in the democratic process; and  

WHEREAS, in an effort to make the City’s Boards and Commissions available to citizens interested in 
participating, the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities and the Goldsboro Municipal Golf 
Course will be revising the number of members on their boards. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, Chapter 32 be 
amended as mentioned above and as follows: 

Chapter 32 

32.220  Miscellaneous 

   (A)   All city residents are eligible to serve on any of the several boards, committees, commissions and 
authorities in operation. 

   (B)   No individual shall be eligible to be appointed concurrently to two or more of these bodies at any 
one time. 

   (C)   All members of boards, commissions, committees and authorities may serve up to a maximum of 
two consecutive terms or six years, whichever is greater. Those persons appointed to serve on an 
unexpired term of a duration of one-half or more of the normal term will be credited with serving their 
first term.  After fulfilling the maximum term requirements, a member may not be appointed to any 
other board, committee, commission or authority until after one year. 

   (D)   At least two months prior to the end of the term of every board, commission, committee and 
authority member, and upon the occurrence of an unanticipated vacancy in the membership of the 
same, the chairperson of the respective board, commission, committee and authority, with the 
endorsement of its membership, shall submit to the Mayor and City Council the names, along with a 
brief biographical resume, of a minimum of two and a maximum of four citizens to be considered for 
each appointment and reappointment to be made. 

   (E)   Each year upcoming vacancies will be advertised in the local newspaper and on the radio during 
the month of October. 

   (F)   For members to be eligible for reappointment, attendance records must show that they have 
participated in 70% of all scheduled meetings in a calendar year unless absence was due to personal 
injury or sickness.  If a member has missed three meetings, notification will be given of his or her 
possible replacement.  At any time during a term, the City Council may be petitioned to terminate the 
appointment of those members who have failed to meet the above requirement. 

   (G)   Yearly appointments to all boards, commissions, committees and authorities will be made no later 
than January 1 of each year, except in cases of unanticipated vacancies which shall be immediately 
filled.  All board members will continue to serve in their current capacity until another board 
appointment has been made. 

   (H)   Whenever possible, all appointments to boards, commissions, committees and authorities will be 
made using a staggered terms format. 

   (I)   The Mayor and City Council hereby establish a policy of non-discrimination as to sex, race, religion 
or national origin and will seek out and appoint citizens of both sexes, and all racial and social-economic 
elements represented by the city’s population to serve on these citizen organizations. 

   (J)   The City Council will appoint members to all boards, commissions, committees and authorities of 
the City of Goldsboro except those of the Housing Authority, whose members shall be appointed by the 
Mayor in accordance with North Carolina G.S. § 157-5. 

39



Section 32:300 

32.300 Boards and Commissions Purpose Statement.  The City Council of the City of Goldsboro 
recognizes and values the importance of citizen participation in local government and strives to select 
citizens from the entire community to serve on boards and commissions taking into consideration 
gender, race and residence on a geographical basis.  The City of Goldsboro utilizes volunteer boards as a 
mechanism to engage citizens in the democratic process. The primary responsibility of these boards is to 
provide advice to the city council from a citizen perspective.  

32.301 General provisions. 

(A)   Definitions. 

1. Board. For the purposes of this article, the word "board" shall mean and include any board,
commission, committee, agency or similar group made up in whole or in part of nonelected appointees 
of the city council, whether established by general statute, charter, ordinance, resolution, motion or 
otherwise. Notwithstanding the preceding, for special committees, task forces and the like, this Article 
shall apply only as appropriate, and the mayor shall have appointment responsibility as provided in the 
City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 30 Section 30.01. 

2. Board Year. Board year shall mean a 12-month time period beginning with the term effective date.

32.302  Membership, general. 

(A)   Membership eligibility and appointment process. In order to be eligible for appointment to a board, 
a person must be 18 years of age or older and a City of Goldsboro resident for the duration of the 
appointment term, unless otherwise provided by law or ordinance, and must file an application on a 
form provided by the city clerk. Unless otherwise directed, or unless otherwise explicitly provided for 
elsewhere in this Code, all appointments to all boards, shall be made by the council as a whole. Unless 
otherwise directed, no person shall serve on more than one board at the same time.  

(B)   Unexpired terms. The council intends to make appointments to fill unexpired portions of terms 
created by vacancies, as expeditiously as possible. Further, the council recognizes that the urgency of 
filling such vacancies may vary depending upon the circumstances of the vacancy. 

(C)   Removal. All members of all boards shall serve at the pleasure of the city council, regardless of the 
terms for which appointed, and the city council may in its discretion, at any time, remove any members 
of any board for any reason, including inefficiency, neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office. 

(D)   Resignations. If a member concludes that he or she will have difficulty fulfilling the volunteer 
commitment, the member may voluntarily resign from the board. Notice should be communicated in 
writing to the city clerk's office.  Members who have been removed from a board or who have resigned 
prior to completion of their term shall disclose such fact in any subsequent application for board 
appointment. 

32.303  Election of Officers.  The Board shall elect a chairperson and vice chairperson and such other 
officers as it may deem proper. The term of the chairperson shall be one year, with eligibility for 
reelection. 

32.304 Terms of office.  The terms of office of members of all boards appointed by the city council shall 
be three years unless otherwise provided by law or ordinance or unless a vacancy is being filled, in which 
case a term may be one, two, or three years, depending on the remainder of the term. Terms on all 
boards shall be staggered, with the terms of approximately one-third of the membership expiring each 
year to ensure there is always one or more members with experience on each board. All terms shall 
begin on January 1 following appointment. A person shall normally serve no more than two consecutive 
full terms on the same board.  A member may continue to serve until his successor is duly named and 
qualified or unless he resigns. 

32.305 Conflicts of interest.  All board members shall read and be familiar with such laws, policies and 
guidelines as may be in effect from time to time concerning ethics and conflicts of interest for city 
advisory boards and commissions and shall sign such policies and guidelines of the city as required by 
their terms.  Refer to state law and Conflict of Interest Policy Statement as revised from time to time in 
accordance with council practices and procedures, for the conflict of interest guidelines that apply to 
boards. 



32.306  Attendance at board meetings.  Although recognizing and appreciating the fact that members 
of the boards are generally citizen volunteers, the city council deems it essential that members of all city 
boards attend meetings regularly for the prompt and efficient transaction of city affairs. The staff liaison 
of each board shall maintain attendance records, including attendance at regular meetings, work 
sessions and all special called meetings.  (Attendance addressed in General Rules of Procedure Policy.) 

32.307  Meetings.  All boards shall meet as often as necessary to conduct the business before it. All 
meetings and hearings of all boards shall be subject to the open meetings law.   

32.308  Quorum.  A quorum shall consist of a majority of the total voting membership plus one, 
excluding vacant seats.  

32.309 Rules and records.   All Boards should adhere to General Rules of Order Policy, as amended 
from time to time in accordance with council practices and procedures.  Each board shall keep minutes 
of its proceedings and discussions, showing the vote of each member upon every question, or a 
member's absence or failure to vote, and shall keep records of its resolutions, findings, 
recommendations, and other official actions. 

32.310  Cooperation with others.    All boards shall cooperate in all respects with other city boards, city 
officials and employees. 

32.311 Annual reports.   Unless otherwise required by North Carolina Law, Charter or City Code, 
advisory boards may make full and complete reports to the city council annually or at such times as they 
are requested to do so.   

32.312-32.319 Reserved  

 

 

 

32.320 Commission on Community Relations and Development 

(A) Purpose and duties.  The purpose and duties of the Commission on Community Relations and 
Development shall be to act as an advisory body to the Director and City Council to enhance community 
harmony and promote awareness of Goldsboro’s growing multiculturalism by facilitating community 
dialogue and meetings, and coordinating resident and organizational coalitions to address community 
issues and concerns.  The Commission on Community Relations and Development will also serve as a 
citizen input mechanism for the community and in an advisory capacity to the City for community 
development administered programs funded through Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and 
HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) grant funds. 

 (B) Membership and Qualifications.  The Commission on Community Relations and Development shall 
consist of eleven (11) members who shall be citizens and residents of the City of Goldsboro or within the 
one-mile jurisdiction of the city.  Where possible, appointments shall be made in a manner as to 
maintain on the Commission at all times at least one third of members be low-to-moderate-income 
persons.  The goal is that these eleven (11) members for which at least one third of the membership are 
low-to-moderate income persons will represent the diverse social, economic, gender, sexual orientation, 
ability, religious affiliations, racial and ethnic composition of the City.   

(C) Staff services. The Community Relations Department shall supply staff and technical services for the 
Commission on Community Relations and Development. 

32.321 Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities 

(A) Purpose and duties.  The purpose and duties of the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
shall be to: 

1. Plan, conduct, and publicize activities designed to promote employment and well-being of people 
with disabilities. 

2. Cooperate with community agencies and organizations in securing employment acceptance of people 
with disabilities. 



3. Stimulate community interest in furthering employment of people with disabilities by securing active
cooperation and support from employers, employees, community groups, and the general public. 

4. Conduct specific activities of the Governor’s Advocacy Council for Persons with Disabilities, the
President’s Committee on Employment of People with Disabilities and promote special events such as 
the Annual National Employ the Handicapped Week and Disability Awareness Week. 

5. Promote the establishment and improvement of rehabilitation and recreational facilities and
programs. 

6. Identify barriers that hinder the mobility of the disabled.

7. Support and promote appropriate legislation advocating issues of interest for people with disabilities.

8. Advise the City Council about the goals, recommendations, and activities of the Committee.

(B) Membership; appointment.  The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities shall be composed 
of 15 16 members.  Members of the committee shall be recommended by local government, 
private/community organizations, by other committee members, or by personal request. 

(C) Staff services.  The Community Relations Department shall supply staff and technical services for the 
Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities.   

32.322 Mayor’s Youth Council 

(A) Purpose and duties.  The purpose of the Youth Council shall be to: 

1. Offer an organization through which the youth of our community may benefit both themselves and
their community. 

2. Provide equal opportunity for each young person to assume responsibility with the adults of the
community. 

3. Serve as a means for young people to practice democracy in order to better prepare themselves for
later responsibilities as citizens and serve as a line of communication between the youth and the adults 
of our community. 

4. Initiate programs and projects that are of benefit to the youth and to our community.

5. Constructively channel the enthusiasm of the young people of the city.

(B) Membership; Appointment; Term.  The Goldsboro Youth Council shall be composed of 30 high school 
students, to be drawn from the public and private high schools in Wayne County.  The principal of each 
school shall determine the method for nominating his or her school's student representatives.  The final 
selection of representatives shall be the responsibility of the Advisor, based upon established criteria.  
The term of office shall be for a period of one year, and each Youth Council member will continue to 
serve until his successor has been selected. 

(C) Coordinator. The Coordinator for the Goldsboro Youth Council shall be an employee of the city 
appointed by the City Manager.  The Coordinator for the Youth Council shall serve as an ex-officio 
member of the Youth Council acting as a liaison between the City Manager, City Council and the Youth 
Council. The Coordinator shall submit to the Youth Council such plans, programs and recommendations 
that fall within the purpose and duties of the Council. 

(D) General Assembly Membership.  The general assembly will consist of representatives from 
community youth groups.  The number will be based on the sizes of the groups.  Its purpose is to serve 
as a line of communication between the youth organizations and to discuss, investigate and vote on 
proposals as they affect the youth population. 

(E) Staff services.  The Community Relations Department shall supply staff and technical services for the 
Mayor’s Youth Council.   

32.323  Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 

(A) Purpose and duties.  The Municipal Golf Course Committee shall: 

1. Recommend ways to improve and enhance the quality of customer service and overall appearance of
the golf course; 



2. Review club house operations and overall maintenance and upkeep of the golf course.  

(B) Membership; appointment.  The Municipal Golf Course Committee shall be composed of five seven 
members. Any resident living within the city, within the one-mile jurisdiction of the city or outside the 
city and the one-mile, but within Wayne County, is eligible to serve as a member of the Committee. 

(C) Staff services.  The Parks and Recreation Department shall supply staff and technical services for the 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course.     

32.324  Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 

(A) Purpose and duties.  The Commission shall serve as a citizen advisory commission to the City Council, 
City Manager and Parks and Recreation Department. The advisory commission may recommend and 
propose to the City Council, City Manager and Parks and Recreation Department any matter relating to 
recreational policies, programs, operational procedures, park development, facility planning, 
maintenance, budget preparation, the need for additional personnel, the acquisition and disposition of 
lands, and properties related to such recreation programs, and such other matters as the Parks and 
Recreation Director shall find advisable or essential to receive consideration by the Commission and 
such other matters as may be requested by any Council member.. 

(B) Membership; appointment.  The Goldsboro Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission shall be 
composed of 11 members.  One member shall be a high school student with a term of one year. Any 
resident of the city is eligible to serve as a member of the Commission.  

(C) Staff services.  The Director of the Parks and Recreation Department or his designee shall serve as 
Secretary to this body. 

 

 

 

32.325  Planning Commission 

(A) Purpose and duties.  As the body charged with Comprehensive Planning, the Planning Commission 
may:  

1. Make studies of areas within the City and its extraterritorial jurisdiction;  

2. Determine the goals and objectives relating to growth, development and/or redevelopment of these 
areas;  

3. Prepare plans for achieving the goals and objectives; and  

4. Develop and recommend policies, ordinances, administrative procedures to carry out the plans.  

As an advisory body to the City Council, the Planning Commission may make recommendations 
concerning:  

1. Proposed official zoning map and Unified Development Ordinance changes;  

2. Proposed rezonings, conditional district rezonings, conditional use permits and the master plans of 
planned unit development districts (PUD);  

3. The location, character and extent of public improvements and the acquisition of land;  

4. The landscape design of parks, streets, recreation areas, public buildings and other local 
developments;  

5. Street names and street name changes;  

6. New development proposals, including site plans, subdivision plans and preliminary plats; and  

7. Other matters as desired by the Development Services Planning Director, directed by the Council or 
other governing Board or initiated by a Commission member. 

(B) Membership.   A Planning Commission for the City of Goldsboro is hereby created. The Goldsboro 
Planning Commission shall consist of seven members. Five members appointed by the City Council shall 
reside within the City and two members appointed by the Wayne County Commissioners shall reside 



within the extraterritorial planning area of the City. If the Wayne County Commissioners fail to make this 
appointment within ninety days after receiving a resolution notifying them of a vacancy from the City 
Council, the City Council may make the appointments. The extraterritorial members shall have the same 
rights, privileges and duties as City members of the Commission. Extraterritorial members are required 
to vote on each question, regardless of whether the matter at issue arises from within the City or within 
the extraterritorial planning area. If an in-City member moves outside of the City limits or if an 
extraterritorial area member moves outside of that jurisdiction, that shall constitute a resignation from 
the Planning Commission, effective upon the date a replacement is appointed. 

(C) Statutory Powers. The Planning Commission may exercise any and all powers prescribed by state law 
and shall perform duties directed by the City Council that are consistent with said law.  

(D) Staff services.  The Development Services Planning Director or his designee shall serve as Secretary 
to this body. 

32.326  Board of Adjustment 

(A) Purpose and duties. The Board of Adjustment shall have the following powers and duties: 

1. Appeal of administrative decisions. – To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error
in any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the Zoning Administrator, any 
Enforcement Officer or Watershed Administrator in the interpretation of the requirements of this 
Ordinance. 

2. Special uses – To hear and decide only such special uses as the Board is authorized to pass on by the
terms of this Ordinance. 

3. Variances – To grant variances in accordance with state law and where assigned by this Ordinance.

4. Interpretation -To interpret the location of lines on the official Zoning Map or Zoning Ordinance text
requirements where the map or text appears to be unclear. 

5. Conditions of approval – In granting any special use permit or variance the Board may prescribe
additional requirements and safeguards to insure the purpose of this Ordinance. 

6. To approve alternate landscaping plans when a strict application of the Ordinance requirements
would result in an unreasonable or impractical solution or situation. Approval shall be consistent with 
the intent and purpose of the landscaping requirements of this Ordinance. This provision shall not apply 
to landscape plans that require City Council approval. 

(B) Membership.  A Board of Adjustment for the City of Goldsboro is hereby created. The Goldsboro 
Board of Adjustment shall consist of five seven regular members and two alternate members. Five 
members appointed by the City Council shall reside within the City and two members appointed by the 
County Commissioners shall reside within the extraterritorial planning area of the City. The Planning 
Commission shall serve as the Board of Adjustment. The Planning Commission shall follow the rules of 
procedure established by the Board of Adjustment when operating in this capacity. 

(C) Meetings.  The Board of Adjustment shall establish a regular meeting schedule. All meetings shall be 
conducted in accordance with the quasi-judicial procedures set forth in Section 3.2. All meetings of the 
Board shall be open to the public and whenever feasible the agenda for each Board meeting shall be 
made available in advance of the meeting.  

(D) Voting.  The concurring vote of four-fifths of the regular Board membership shall be necessary to 
reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of the Administrator, to find in favor of the 
applicant on the issuance of special use permits, to interpret imprecise Ordinance text or zoning district 
boundaries and to grant a variance or any matter upon which the Board is required to pass under this 
Ordinance. However, the four-fifths majority vote means four-fifths of the entire Board, not just four-
fifths of those present. For example, in the case of Goldsboro’s seven member Board, if one member is 
absent and there are no alternate members to take the place of the absent member, a unanimous six 
votes would be required to obtain the necessary four-fifths majority. (Six being the first whole number 
to exceed four-fifths (0.80) of the entire Board). If alternate members are present, they may vote in 
place of any absent member. 

All other actions of the Board shall be taken by majority vote, a quorum being present. 



(E) Records.  The Board of Adjustment shall keep a public record of its resolutions, transactions, findings 
and determinations. Final disposition of all cases considered by the Board shall be by written order with 
the findings of fact stated and the reasons therefore, all of which shall be a matter of public record. 

(F) Staff services.  The Development Services Planning Director or his designee shall serve as Secretary to 
this body. 

32.327 – (Reserved) 

32.328  Goldsboro Historic District Commission 

(A) Purpose and duties.  The purpose and duties of the Commission include: 

1. Project approvals – To review and act upon the appropriateness of proposals for alterations,
demolitions or new construction within historic districts or to historic landmarks; 

2. Historic resources inventory – To undertake an inventory of properties of historical, prehistorical,
architectural and/or cultural significance; 

3. Historic district and landmark designation – To recommend to the City Council areas to be designated
by ordinance as “Historic Districts”; and individual structures, buildings, sites, area or objects to be 
designated by ordinance as “Landmarks;” 

4. Historic property acquisition – To acquire by any lawful means the fee or any lesser included interest,
including the option to purchase properties within an established district or any property designated as 
a landmark; 

5. Negotiation – To negotiate at any time with the owner of a building, site, area or object for its
acquisition or preservation; 

6. Historic property protection – To restore, preserve and operate historic properties;

7. Revocation of designation – To recommend to the City Council that the designation of any area as a
historic district or part thereof, or designation of any building, structure, site, area or object as a 
landmark, be revoked or removed for cause; 

8. Public outreach – To conduct an educational program with respect to historic properties and districts
within its jurisdiction; 

9. Intergovernmental partnerships - To cooperate with state, federal and local governments in
pursuance of purposes of this part. The City Council may authorize the Commission to contract with 
state and federal governments or any agency of either, or with any other organization provided the 
terms are not inconsistent with state and federal law;  

10. Comprehensive Planning – To prepare and recommend the official adoption of a preservation
element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

B) Membership. A Historic Preservation Commission, known in this Section as the “Commission,” for the
City of Goldsboro is hereby created. The Commission shall consist of seven regular members, two 
alternate members and two ex-officio members. The members at the time of appointment shall reside 
within the planning and zoning jurisdiction of the City. The members of the Commission shall be 
qualified by special interest, knowledge or training in such fields as architecture, construction or historic 
preservation. Alternate members, when acting on the commission, shall have all the same powers and 
duties as the member for which they substitute. 

Two ex-officio members shall serve as follows: 

1. The Mayor or one member of the City Council; and

2. An at-large member appointed by the City Council.

(C) Staff services.  The Development Services Planning Director or his designee shall serve as Secretary to 
this body. 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 20th day of December, 2021. 



9



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

December 2021 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater-GEC

10. Parks and Recreation
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item K



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
November 2021 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  December 1, 2021 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for its regular monthly meeting on November 21st, 

however, there was not a quorum, and therefore no official business was carried out.  The MCPD Disability Walk 
Subcommittee met in-person on November 9th.  A meeting to discuss the Accessible Playground was held with Parks 
& Recreation Director and Community Relations Staff on November 3rd. 
 

• On November 9th, the Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for Community 
Development Training at 5:00 pm and extending into the regular meeting hour, however, there was not a quorum, 
therefore the training did not take place.  The MLK Planning subcommittee met for its first meeting on November 
2nd.   
 

• GYC provided community service at the Downtown Lights Up event hold on November 23rd.  GYC held its regular 
meeting on November 3rd.   

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended the regular meeting of the Wayne County JCPC on November 19th at the Chamber of 
    Commerce.    
2. Staff provided community service to the Community Supporting School’s Restorative Justice/Sentencing Circles 
    Program (similar to Teen Court) on November 3rd and November 10th at the Chamber of Commerce.   
3. Staff attended a Citizens Academy Planning meetings on November 3rd, November 4th, and November 5th.  
4. Staff attended Habitat for Humanity’s Annual Partnership Breakfast at Lane Tree Country Club on November 5th.   
5. Staff engaged in a telephone conference on November 10th with Health Education Specialist Samantha Patrick  
    of the Wayne Co. Health Department and provided assistance for World AIDS Day.  Staff collaborated with Asst. 
    City Manager to arrange for the downtown fountain to be turned red in observance of the event.  Staff also 
    coordinated media coverage of the Health Department’s Dec.1st event with Public Information Officer.   
6. Staff attended a virtual meeting hosted by United Way and included other community partners to discuss 
    homeless shelters on November 19th.   
7.  Staff provided community service and assisted 4 Day Movement with serving Thanksgiving meals to the homeless 
    and families of deployed military on November 22nd.    

 
• Community Relations department monthly staff meeting was held on November 5th.   

 
• Community Development Activities:  

1. Staff met in-person with Pastor DJ Coles of 4 Day Movement on November 1st to discuss CDBG-CV funding.    
2. Staff met with Procurement Manager, Tim Wood, on November 3rd and November 17th to discuss securing 
    an Underwriter for the Tiffany Garden project.   
3. Staff met in-person with managers of U.S. Bank to discuss collaboration on the City’s Homebuyer Assistance 
    Program on November 8th.     
4. Staff engaged in 5 phone consults with HUD Representative for the month of November.   One consult included 
    City Manager and Assistant City Manager and the other included Finance Director and Assistant Finance Director.   
5. Staff engaged in 4 email consults with NCHFA Case Manager during the month of November. 

 



 

 
• The Department received zero (0) housing complaints and thirty (30) requests for assistance for the month of 

November. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for the detailed summary.   
 

2021 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 0 4 2 0 4 5 1 8 9 2 2 0 4 
Consumer & Other 2 8 21 10 12 9 12 10 16 10 30 0 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
November 2021 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  December 1, 2021 
 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
 
*No complaints/grievances received for the month of November 
 
 
Assistance with Resources 
 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 18 Referred all to Hope 
Restoration 
Rehabilitation Program 

First-Time Homebuyer 7 Provided application 
packet 

Garbage Pickup 1 Referred to Public 
Works 

Deed to home 1 Mailed copy from 
Register of Deeds 
website 

HOPE Program (Case 
Manager requesting 
account verification for 
applicant) 

1 Referred to Water 
Department for account 
verification 

Housing/Pregnancy 
Support/Domestic 
Violence 

1 Referred to Wayne 
Pregnancy 
Center/Provided 
Community Resource 
Listing 

Grant for fencing 1 No resource available to 
refer to 

Total Requests: 30  
 





 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
November 2021 
Prepared by:  Guy M. Anderson, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  12-10-21 
              
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Staff submitted final plans and specifications for NCDOT approval. 
 

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Project is complete with the exception of receiving final pay application from the contractor. 

 
2019 Infrastructure Recovery (Golden Leaf Foundation)  

• This project consists of sewer rehabilitation and storm drainage improvements in various areas; 
• Project is complete and final payment request submitted to Finance Department. 

 
2021 Street Resurfacing 

• The resurfacing project is 95% complete; 
• Five (5) streets remain for paving and patching; 
• Contract completion date is March 8, 2022. 

 
2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002  

• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash 
Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
campus; 

• Project is 98% complete; 
• Sewer service with conflict box and punch list items remain to be completed. 

 
2017 Water System Improvements 

• This project consists of creating a separate pressure zone in the New Hope area by installing a 
booster pump station at the New Hope Water Tank and a couple of pressure reducing valves at the 
extreme ends of the new pressure zone; 

• Design plans and specifications anticipated for approval by NCDEQ in January 2022.  
 

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk  
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to 

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street; 
• Construction plans are 90% complete; 
• This project is temporarily on hold. 

 
 



2 

2019 Water Improvements Project 
• The Wooten Company engineering agreement provides services for preliminary engineering report 

and environmental report for substandard City of Goldsboro water lines; 
• PER/EID Report approved by DWI. 

 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• A revision is required and will be submitted at a later date. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Construction Inspector completed and received SCM Certification in October; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections will resume starting January 2022. 

 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
NOVEMBER 2021 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: December 13, 2021 
 

 

FY 20-21
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues October-20 Adjusted Budget October-21 Collected
General Fund 9,016,743$      45,835,802$        10,178,877$    22.21%
Utility Fund 6,146,989        20,739,218          7,376,340        35.57%
Downtown District Fund 30,524             95,174                 25,839             27.15%
Occupancy Tax Fund 346,473           1,139,668            376,885           33.07%
Stormwater Fund 511,704           1,576,200            814,435           51.67%
     Total 16,052,432$    69,386,062$        18,772,377$    27.05%

Expenditures
General Fund 12,625,340$    45,835,802$        13,824,927$    30.16%
Utility Fund 5,287,746        20,739,218 4,536,159 21.87%
Downtown District Fund 2,263               95,174 30,188             31.72%
Occupancy Tax Fund 142,889           1,139,668 246,182 21.60%
Stormwater Fund 336,030           1,576,200 541,815 34.37%
     Total 18,394,268$    69,386,062$        19,179,271$    27.64%

FY 20-21
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

October-20 Adjusted Budget October-21 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 4,438,449$      18,876,693$        3,690,844$      19.55%
Charges for Services 7,826,369        23,836,557          8,915,432        37.40%
Revenue Other Agencies 1,508,264        19,483,742          1,998,435        10.26%
Other Revenues 755,871           3,282,836            2,563,745        78.10%
Fund Balance -                   698,394               -                   0.00%
Shared Services 1,523,479        3,207,840            1,603,920        50.00%
     Total 16,052,432$    69,386,062$        18,772,377$    27.05%

Expenditures
Labor 9,152,760$      32,064,318$        9,129,762$      28.47%
Non-Labor 9,241,508        37,321,744          10,049,509      26.93%
     Total 18,394,268$    69,386,062$        19,179,271$    27.64%

FY 20-21 Actual Total 
Collections Actual October-21 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 44,690$           445$                     3,551$             
Surplus 58,361$           -$                      -$                 

FY 21-22

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 21-22

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



 

 
 
 
 

1 

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 231

Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6 2 7 4

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 89

Vehicle  Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 35

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 47

O ther: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 55

Training Hours: 3006 3143 3010 2730 2029 1877 1633 1833 1596 1914 1591 2215

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 2

Inspections: 118 149 215 167 179 237 193 191 177 157 154 176

2020 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 198 187 166 111 118 208 213 213 233 203 204 225 190

Structure Fires: 10 4 2 1 4 4 2 2 6 2 1 3 3

EMS Calls: 70 81 73 7 21 74 89 68 80 88 76 88 68

Vehicle  Accidents: 35 22 26 25 26 29 27 42 34 34 33 35 31

Fire Alarms: 46 29 26 38 33 46 45 49 69 41 46 39 42

O ther: 37 51 39 40 34 55 50 52 44 38 48 60 46

Training Hours: 2969 3061 3626 2426 2289 2254 2351 2244 2522 2514 2032 1962 2521

Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 9 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 2

Inspections: 129 119 143 73 108 134 151 108 119 140 124 132 123

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
November 2021 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien 
Date Prepared: December 8, 2021 

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 73.4 of the time. 26.6% of fire incidents were 
classified as undetermined or still under investigation.  
 

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:19.  
 

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 96.2% of all calls.  
 

 70.1% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.  
 

 There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service 
deaths.  

 
 The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.  

 
 Fire prevention and community service activities including: Car Seat Safety Checks with 

Safe Kids of Wayne County, Veteran’s Day Parade, Santa Fest at Berkeley Mall, Downtown 
Lights Up, and several Birthday Ride-by Celebrations. 316 Adults and 325 Children received 
fire prevention education.  

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
November 2021  
Date Prepared:  December 13, 2021    
 
 
Human Resources  

• Supervisors are completing annual evaluations. As of November 30, 330 evaluations were 
completed. 

• HR staff assisted Information Technology with interviews November 15 & 16.  
• HR staff assisted Fire Department with interviews November 22 & 23. 
 

Safety   
• November City Hall Fire Extinguisher / Defibrillator inspections 
• November 1 – Meeting with Police Officer that resigned to Sheriff’s office. He wanted to talk about 

Safety concerns within department. 
• November 5 – Meeting with Deputy Chief Farfour concerning the COVID 19 OSHA Standard policy 
• November 8 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Committee heard four cases. Three 

cases received points for their accident. 
• Bucks Fire Service checking all fire extinguishers in the city vehicles. 
• November 17 – Accident investigation involving a Public Works Vehicle on Hwy 117 
• November 15 – Park safety inspections 
• November 17 – Accident investigation on Seymour Johnson AFB involving a solid waste vehicle. 
• November 18 – Webinar with Department of Labor and Covid 19 regulations 
• November 29 – Water Main break on ASH and John Street, with crews 
• November 24 – Accident investigation involving animal control officer and telephone pole 
• Teleconference with Doug McGrath concerning North Carolina Freedom Festival for May 21st, 

2022 
• November 30 – Water Main break on George Street. 
• Field Safety with private contractors and City crews.  

 
Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols. There were 165 clinic visits this month. No random drug screens and 1 DOT post-accident drug 
screen this month.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total 
Employment 

569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 
 

 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27  20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173  203 
Applicant 
Notices 

214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 
 

 132 
 

New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1  3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3  5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1  1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0  .27 
Turnover 
Rate  

.18% .88% .89% .53% 1.44% 1.08% 1.09% 1.45 1.10 1.49 .19 
 

 .94% 

Vehicle 
Accidents 

2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0  2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2  9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11  17 

 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Total 
Employment 

573  573 575 574 573 571 568 565 561 561 560 562 568 

Vacancies  21 23 28 16 12 13 12 13 19 12 9 18 17 
Applications 480 367 208 158 73 124 227 225 262 177 44 278 213 

Applicant 
Notices 

277 295 110 259 117 384 106 94 122 111 135 140 183 
 

New Hires      9 6 5 3 1 3 3 4 2 5 3 7 4 
Resignations 1 3 2 4 1 5 3 6 4 4 1 1 3 
Retirements  4 2 1 0 1 0 3 1 1 1 1 4 2 
Terminations  0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 .36 
Turnover 
Rate  

.87% .87% .52% .70% .35% .88% 1.06% 1.24% .89% .89% .36% .89% 0.79% 

Vehicle 
Accidents 

    4 0 2 5 5 2 0 0 2 0 0 1 2 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

    0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0.25 

FFCRA Leave    0 10 6 20 20 11 17 13 6 31 13 

Telework   37 39 35 32 32 32 33 24 19 25 31 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
November 2021 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: December 06, 2021 

 
• Repaired eCrash issues and Completed PD Promotional Video. 
• Replaced Large Conference Room Projector Bulb. 
• Upgraded Tower 1 Computer. 
• Repaired CAD computer for Fire Station 1. 
• Upgraded phone lines at Paramount Theatre. 
• Upgraded PLC Assignments for SCADA at Water Treatment Plant. 
• Repaired phone lines at two locations. 
• Two staff attended training boot camp. 
• Setup Office 365 for final testing in IT. 
• Completed Office 365 & Sharepoint migration for IT. 
• Updated MDTs for Police and Fire. 
• Assisted with Fire Department Assessment Center. 
• Completed account migration for two lift stations to a new service provider. 
• Administrative Assistant III and CSA II interviews and assessments. 
• Completed Downtown Lights Up Drone flights. 
• Fixed Getac in care video offloading issue. 
• Completed HR Office moves. 

 
2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348  439 5418 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306  484 5324 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452  418  

 
 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

551 656 595 618 448 578 641 533 495 532 457 414 555 
 

6,518 
 

Tickets 
Closed 

524 684 560 680 425 632 705 502 447 529 427 529 556 
 

6,644 

Open  
Tickets 

511 483 518 456 479 425 361 392 440 443 473 358 445  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Nov 2021 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 12/02/21 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for November totaled $6,523,036.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for 
our local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $27,603.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,450 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,785. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,080. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 529 inspections for the month.  During the month of November, five (5) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 262 permits were issued for the month.    Ninety-three (93) plan reviews 
were completed for November. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $7.6
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $5.4
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $33.9
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 517
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 293
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 61

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $14 $5.3 $2.7 $5.1 $3.2 $8.9 $4.7 $10.9 $28.8 $7.3 $4.6 $6.3 $8.5
All Bldgs $ (M) $11 $2.3 $1.4 $3.8 $1.9 $7.0 $3.1 $9.1 $27.1 $1.7 $2.9 $3.5 $6.2
Residential $ (K) $2.6M $843 $435 $2.4M $858 $834 $575 $1.6M $375 $1.3 $1.1 $191 $1.1
Misc $ (M) $3 $3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.9 $1.6 $1.8 $1.7 $5.6 $1.7 $2.80 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $45 $48 $29 $38 $33 $53 $32 $47 $45 $37 $30 $30 $39
Inspections 597 351 612 430 474 502 619 532 709 625 484 492 536
Permits Issued 271 249 257 229 251 273 268 277 294 238 230 227 255
Plan Reviews 17 43 41 45 50 46 36 48 63 31 24 30 40
Min Housing 134 136 157 157 157 157
In Process



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT & GEC 
November 2021 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared:  12/13/2021 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• November capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• November activity included 26 rental/use days, including 8 public performances. 
• November COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes: 0 days, 0 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance works in progress:  

Sound repairs (Foundation funded), awning replacement (Foundation split), Roof (quote TBD) 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

Expenses –$47,860:   Labor - $27,635 / Operations – $1,365 /Artist&Renter Payout – $18,860 
Revenues - $46,585:      Tickets -$39,251 / Rentals- $6,522/ Concession- $812  
 

 
--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 

• November capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• November activity included 7 event rental days, including 1 non-revenue City events. 
• November COVID-19 cancelled or postponed include 4 event rental days. 
• Repairs and Maintenance in progress or under consideration:  

Landscaping, tree-trimming, and front garden improvements. Parking lot lighting improvements. 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
Expenses – $10,679: Labor - $6,081 / Operational – $4,598 
Revenues – $11,925:            Rentals - $7,107 / Amenities - $985 / F&B – $3,833 
City Use – $775 Value of Non-revenue City use of facility - $775 

 

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $226,896 $45,379

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $87,041 $17,408

Grants $76,235 $145,036 $110,636 $331,907

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $18,774 $23,883 $31,146 $49,123 $36,588 $26,876 $44,093 $52,183 $42,371 $91,817 $478,053 $39,838

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635 $1,508 $2,260 $15,982 $4,697 $5,712 $8,874 $58,020 $69,591 $169,509 $14,126

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $4,602 $10,442 $8,520 $15,505 $10,679 $49,748 $9,950

Rev $0 $5,673 $6,192 $9,203 $11,925 $32,993 $6,599

City $2,400 $0 $2,205 $4,550 $775 $9,930 $1,986

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931 $6,727 $14,807 $8,153 $11,245 $13,874 $7,339 $9,469 $14,556 $136,278 $11,356

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894 $6,122 $12,067 <$1,732> $4,695 $5,778 $3,737 $5,168 $3,765 $43,941 $3,662

City $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,925 $850 $0 $0 $775 $775 $750 $1,250 $6,325 $527



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
November - 2021 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 12/10/2021 

 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted a Members Outing on November 2nd – 18 players; 1st Sergeants 
Tournament on November 5th – 80 players; hosted members from other golf courses that played with 
our members on November 6th – 47 players; and Warriors Tournament on November 11th – 26 players  
 

• The Annual Big Cat Kids Catfishing Tournament held at Goldsboro Golf Course on November 6th  –           
30 participants 
 

• Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted the United States Youth Soccer (USYS) Girls State Cup from 
November 6 -7th – 48 teams 
 

• Bryan MSCX hosted the Boys Lacrosse Tournament (Laxfest) from November 14 -15th – 48 teams 
 

• Our 3rd Annual Ride the City bicycling event held on October 16th – 50 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted 412xms Tournament on November 19th – 45 players; Goldsboro Golf 
Course’s version of the “Ryder Cup” was held November 27 -28th – 24 players; and Southeastern Seniors 
played on November 30th – 62 players 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean our park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff have started the process of winterizing some of the restrooms located in our 

parks as the older restrooms were not built to be open during the winter months 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270  $945 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70  $622 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259  274 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042  $4,663 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50  $426 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100  $1,045 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171  1,189 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232  $11,563 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548  $567 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0  $1,100 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42  $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114  59 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857  $1,622 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140  $1,599 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0  $27 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268  739 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854  $6,821 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090  $8,267 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650  $617 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123  17,984 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726  $25,710 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965  $52,625 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890  $43,274 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087  1,979 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925  $14,216 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0  $390 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30  65 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110  $534 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925  $67,134 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711  $95,287 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $738,475 

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR             $1,048,159 



 

 
 

 
 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $2,361 $3,933 $336 $0 $0 $0 $20 $0 $20 $275 $80 $20 $587 

Rental Revenue  $260 $1,225 $1,240 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $235 $0 $137 $258 

Facility Usage 418 1,082 267 0 0 0 0 0 36 97 42 69 168 

Expenditures $4,257 $5,205 $2,542 $2,270 $1,388 $641 $188 $910 $2,608 $2,593 $614 $1,459 $2,056 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $10 $5 $15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70 $195 $290 $275 $72 

Rental Revenue $975 $1,563 $900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,260 $3,048 $113 $0 $655 

Facility Usage 4,050 3,604 605 0 0 0 0 0 30 150 549 737 810 

Expenditures $10,396 $8,788 $5,335 $2,833 $3,216 $3,732 $2,980 $1,749 $2,781 $5,069 $2677 $3,650 $4,434 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $460 $0 $0 $38 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 

Facility Usage 354 339 197 0 0 0 0 0 0 126 22 10 87 

Expenditures $2,020 $2,164 $1,173 $40 $226 $58 $0 $165 $300 $694 $393 $88 $610 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $280 $201 $157 $0 $0 $3,469 $5,425 $1,859 $352 $140 $846 $140 $1,072 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 1,144 1,532 674 0 33 1,107 2,772 1,398 205 104 184 137 774 

Expenditures $2,223 $2,380 $7,343 $4,686 $1,961 $12,588 $21,173 $12,077 $6,149 $1596 $1683 $450 $6,712 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $3,262 $5,000 $5,080 $0 $0 $2,420 $1,725 $195 $1,200 $400 $3,788 $440 $1,959 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $700 $5,010 $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $750 $0 $0 $638 

Facility Usage 12,865 17,845 6,585 300 644 1,522 3,425 3,724 5,130 9,781 20,274 5,839 7,328 

Expenditures $6,663 $14,564 $11,999 $13,607 $38,561 $7,269 $13,661 $9,689 $7,792 $9,321 $7,725 $8,110 $12,413 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $42,254 $16,420 $48,796 $55,207 $61,268 $50,249 $71,304 $46,781 $61,011 $59,039 $46,994 $24,172 $48,625 

Expenditures $44,862 $23,671 $55,861 $43,212 $42,815 $165,446 $32,993 $43,191 $41,328 $33,101 $45,288 $43,392 $51,263 

Rounds of Golf 973 557 1,421 1,805 2,227 2,158 2,137 1,867 1,930 1,871 1,542 922 1,618 

Net - $2,608 $-7,251 -$7,065 $11,995 $18,454 -$115,197 $38,311 $3,589 $19,683 $25,938 $1,706 
-

$19,220 -$2,639 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $210 $0 $40 

Participation 0 0 130 0 0 0 0 0 0 175 32 3,489 319 

Expenditures $332 $0 $292 $34 $0 $288 $110 $0 $0 $2,132 $1,204 $1,095 $457 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $50,102 $33,357 $57,724 $55,207 $61,268 $56,138 $78,474 $48,835 $63,913 $64,842 $52,291 $25,184 $53,945 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $647,335 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
November 2021 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  December 13, 2021 

During the month of November the Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and 

residential building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has 

overseen contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and 

landscaping maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff is in the 

process for compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D updates, including updating all copies online 

and in-office. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 

documents and preparation of case reports.  Code Enforcement issues $25.00 parking violation tickets 

within the downtown area or upon notification elsewhere in the City. During the month of November 

(5) tickets were issued 

Parked in Wrong Direction 3 

Parked in Proximity to Fire Hydrant 0 

Parked in a Prohibited Area (No Parking Zone) 2 

Other (Bus Loading Zone, Crosswalk, Sidewalk, Alley) 0 

2021 
 

  

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level

Site Plans 0 4 4 1 0 9 1

Subdivison 6 3 2 0 0 11 1

Planning/City Council

Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 3 4 0 2 0 2 15 1

Special Use 2 1 0 3 3 9 1

Historic District Commission

Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 3 9 1

Grass Cutting 

# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 43 33 58 37 35 19 330 41

Grass Cutting 

Payments $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $1,420.00 $2,430 $2,190 $1,740 $3,025 $1,965 $1,770 $955 $15,670 $1,959

Tagged 

Vehicles
25 15 12 21 23 25 11 24 15 1 0 172 14

Illegal Signs 

Removed
52 77 380 36 30 174 147 155 189 222 192 1654 138

Bags of Litter 

Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 206 253 212 261 239 244 2478 207

*Adoption of 160D has allowed all Site Plans & Subdivisions to be 

reviewed at staff level no longer needing Planning/City Council 

review. Monthy report updated to reflect current process.

Planning Dept.

Code Enforcement 

*Adoption of 160D changed Conditional Use permits to Special Use 

permits. These were not previously reported. Monthy report 

updated to reflect current process.



 

 

2020 
 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average 
Site/Subdivision Plans 

Planning 
Commission 

2 4 2 3 2 1 3 3 2 1 7 3 33 3 

Staff Level 0 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 2 3 3 3 21 2 
  

Rezonings 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 3 2 1 13 1 
Historic District Commission 
Commission 

Review 
1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 1 

Staff 
Review 

1 0 1 2 2 1 0 2 2 2 1 2 16 1 

  
Code Enforcement  
Grass 
Cutting  
# Lots 

0 0 0 36 53 28 82 119 53 124 35 0 530 66 

Grass 
Cutting  
Payments 

0 0 0 $2,115 $3,025  $2,205  $4,025  $6,850  $2,870  $5,340 $1,905  $      -    $28,335 $3,542 

Junk 
Vehicles 

0 7 2 2 27 0 0 0 2 3 10 16 69 6 

Tagged 
Vehicles 

0 43 7 47 2 5 25 50 26 21 25 25 276 23 

Illegal Signs 
Removed 

0 0 143 67 13 38 80 900 24 44 247 166 1722 144 

Bags of 
Litter 
Picked Up 

292 2438 261 187 224 197 211 250 737 419 209 328 5753 479 

 



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
November 2021 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  December 7, 2021  
 
Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for November 2021 were 133, compared to 167 for November 2020. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $887,555 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $92,025 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 96 people and issued 347 citations during the month. There were 40 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 4 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1  0 0  0  1 1  0  1  1  1   0   6 0.5 
Rape 3  0 1  2  1 0  1  0  0  2  1    11 1.0 
Robbery 7    3 2  1  8 3  5  4  1  5  0    39 3.5 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10  24  12 13  15  18  16  9  18    156 14.2 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18  30  25 34  21  23  15  12  16    239 21.7 
Larceny 88    70  87 83  114 90  90  116  99  96  92    1025 93.2 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8  9 5  7  11 10  7  7  12  7  6    89 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1  0  0  0  1  0  0  1  0    3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124   147 172  151  140  169  144  133  133    1568 142.5 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0  1  0  0 2 0.2 
Rape 1 1 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 3 1 1 13 1.1 
Robbery 5 7 2 0 4 6 4 5 1 4 1 7 46 3.8 
Aggravated Assault 11 12 14 9 9 19 25 20 28 23 15 13 198 16.5 
Breaking & Entering 29 27 21 23 18 27 30 36 25 25 38 39 338 28.2 
Larceny 112 122 113 97 79 104 108 136 94 113 105 108 1291 107.6 
Motor Vehicle Theft 9 8 7 6 6 11 6 10 7 5 7 6 88 7.3 
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 0.3 
TOTALS 166 177 157 136 116 168 178 209 155 174 167 175 1979 165 

 

 
Revenue collected for November 2021 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

238.00  
 Fingerprints   $   60.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $     50.00  
             Total     $ 348.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
November 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: December 13, 2021 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o The EPA signed the Lead and Copper Rule revisions on June 10, 2021. The effective date is 

set for December 16, 2021. Mandatory increases to sampling, education, inventory, and 
service line replacement are of note. More resources are needed to meet these 
requirements, which have been cut from recent budget requests. 

o Divers have completed the cleaning of the Intake Structure Screen and the wet well to the 
Intake Pump Station 

o  WTP is fully staffed and all are certified. 
 
Water Reclamation Facility 

• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been demanding. In 2021, the plant is 
operating at 83% capacity. The average daily flows for November were 6.52-MGD.  

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 
Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows, and Big Cherry’s 
generator is only able to run in manual and parts are ordered.  

o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 
an upgrade. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but no violations 
have occurred during each event. Monies were approved with ARP funds to repair.  

o One uncertified operator is working towards certification.  
 
Compost Facility 

• Four-hundred and seven-two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in November 2021. 
 
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for October are estimated, due to all the results are not in 
for the month. 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70  6.013 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52  11.81 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472  449 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2020 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.032 6.201 6.318 6.117 6.639 6.779 7.033 6.529 6.564 6.368 6.109 5.953 6.386 
Sewer** 9.71 13.45 9.95 8.60 10.11 12.33 10.36 12.83 10.00 9.84 13.87 12.87 11.16 
Compost 283 950 824 914 727 570 237 389 286 830 428 329 563 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 7.9
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 4.2
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24.4
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 16.3
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 4.4

18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 21.2

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 44.5
14 14.0
0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 75.4
0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 73.4

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 262.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       52.1

0.9 0.9 1.1 1.1 0.9 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.035
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 61.4
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.605

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 5.5

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 45.3

175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 121.8
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 2.390
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 5.422

1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3.6

22.3 12.2 35.4 17.3 3.4 18.9 18.5 25.8 9.1 37.8 11.8 12.9 18.8
5.8 5.2 7.6 5.1 12.6 7.6 11.8 10.8 11.0 12.5 4.7 4.2 8.2
27 22 27 19 9 16 30 24 20 26 15 26 21.8
12 10 29 19 12 9 17 5 16 19 5 7 13.3
9 9 2 3 2 9 3 8 9 6 4 44 9.0

34 36 33 22 30 42 33 17 21 13 17 18 26.3

42 23 54 50 49 58 69 63 62 47 37 51 50.4
78 56 54 23 24 24 51 48 53 56 31 46 45.3
0 0 44 73 101.6 98 149 135 115 52 32.5 0 66.7
0 0 50 92 89 88 110 64 70 89 12 0 55.3

228 357 209 296 245 277 292 288 285 247 280 251 271.3
46$       67$       52$       60$       52$       56$       70$       53$       64$       52$       52$       50$       56.2

0.9 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0
103 79 93 88 88 88 117 18 62 107 66 115.18 85.3
0.4 0.7 0.1 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.7 1.1 0.7

5 3 9 4 2 6 5 5 6 6 9 10 5.8

0 0 18 29 10 24 26 26 34 15 10 0 16.0
49 83 30 28 35 50 64 30 17 39 41 75 45.1
48 112.3 66.2 128 123.1 142.7 145.7 138.3 68.2 93 123.1 137 110.5

0.08 0.50 0.05 1.73 2.07 6.96 0.70 4.71 0.15 0.08 0.01 0.24 1.4
0.00 0.00 0.00 2.51 1.17 12.27 6.12 11.30 1.52 2.28 9.30 0.00 3.9

1 7 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 3 8 3 4.7

Public Works Department
November 2021
Prepared by:  Chad Edge
Date Prepared: 09 December 2021

2020

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2021

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
Sign Repairs

ROW Mowing (ac)
City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Signing responsibilities transferred to Engineering Department

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
Sign Repairs

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

ROW Mowing (ac)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide—Focused on vegetation management along 
both semi circles along Ash Street; Completed installation of Christmas lights within downtown in preparation of Lights Up event.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 24 after hour calls—total of 34.25 hours; Completed 104 work orders total.

Streets & Stormwater: Call duty responded to two after hour calls- total of 2 hours;  Six (6) Streets/Stormwater staff attended 
the NC LTAP Basic workzone training course at NC State University.  



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
November 2021 
Prepared by: Joanna Ferrin and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared 11/23/21 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of November by the TTO—1061 e-

inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in   was $2,112,236, which is up 24.6% YOY. 

November revenue not yet released. 

● For the month, TTO Facebook page had 61 page likes and 63 new follows. 

Instagram page had 65 new followers. 

● T&T guided a social media influencer around Goldsboro-Wayne County for a 

social media spotlight on the area. The influencer can be found at 

@Linda.Carol.S on Instagram with over 10.1k followers. 

● North Carolina Laxfest Girls and Boys Sessions took place Oct. 23 + 24 

and Nov. 13 + 14 at the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex 96 total teams 

attended with a total population size of around 6,800 people. The 

estimated combined economic impact generated from the two sessions is 

$928,800, and generated more than $70,500 of local taxes.  

● The Downtown and Goldsborough Bridge Battlefield Ghost Tours ended for 

the season on Nov. 20 with overall total sales at $3,270.00.  

 
City Occupancy Tax Collections 

*November occupancy tax information not yet released. 

 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $394,302 $78,860 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 
$103,41
6 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $93,168 $906,897 $75,575 

 




	Agenda 12-20-21
	SU-13-21
	su-14-21
	su-15-21
	z-12-21
	z-13-21
	BC Appointments
	BC Meetings 2022
	ORD Amend Ch 32
	Departmental Monthly Reports
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations Monthly Report-November 2021
	Community Relations Monthly Report-November 2021 ADDENDUM
	IT Monthly Report November 2021
	Inspections Mo.RepNov2021
	TT November 2021 Report

	Marty Anderson Retirement RES
	RG Retirement RES
	ADPEF69.tmp
	____________________________
	David Ham, Mayor
	Attested by:
	_________________________
	Laura Getz, City Clerk

	ADP7A50.tmp
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL
	DECEMBER 6, 2021
	UWORK SESSION
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on December 6, 2021.
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
	URoll Call.
	Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember Charles Gaylor, IV
	UCITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember Charles Gaylor, IV
	Absent: Councilmember Gene Aycock
	UApproval of Minutes.U  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 15, 2021. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Jones and unanimously carried.
	UPresentations.
	Redistricting Presentation. Caroline Mackie, Marshall Hurley and Bill Gilkeson with Poyner Spruill, LLC presented the following:
	Mayor Ham asked when the next meeting would be held. It was determined that Poyner Spruill will return to discuss redistricting criteria at the Council Retreat in February.
	Habitat for Humanity Presentation. Matthew Whittle, Executive Director of Habitat for Humanity presented the following information:
	Continental Society Proclamation Presentation. Read by Councilmember Jones, David Ham, Mayor of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed December 11, 2021 as GOLDSBORO CHAPTER OF THE CONTINENTAL SOCIETIES, INC. DAY in Goldsboro, North Carolin...
	Comatha Johnson, Second Vice President and Councilmember Jones shared comments regarding the Continental Societies.




